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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located at the entrance to the Columbia River, Fort Stevens represent

the evolution of military architecture and engineering over a period of 80
years. TIts gun emplacements complemented fire power of defense posts,
Fort Canby and Fort Columbia, on the North shore of the Columbia in the
State of Washington.

The natural setting is one of coastal marshes and dunes with a
vegetative cover of beachgrass, salal and alder, The primary features of
the site are Battery David Russell, Battery Lewis Clark, the several nearly
contiguous emplacements known as the West Batteries (Battery 245, West Battey
Battery Pratt); Battery Eljas Smur, Battery Constant Freeman, buildings of
the Upper Fort and Soldjers' Cemetery. Of these primary sites, Battery Clarh
the Upper Fort area, and Soldiers' Cemetery are not under jurisdiction of
the State at the present time. There are in addition to emplacements and
buildings of the post, jntegral structures and sites including base end
stations used in triangulation, fire control stations, search 1ight shelters
and mine loading rooms,

A1l guns and most of the metal fittings of the concrete emplacements
were taken for scrap after the post was released by the military in 1947.
The emplacements have deterjorated in the intervening years of neglect, but
they are capable of being cleaned up, stabilized and, where apEropriate,
restored. Battery Russell is currently in the process of rehabilitation.
Guns and mounts of the models installed at Battery Russell are no longer
available for the purposes of restoration.
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FORT STEVENS
2. Location

The original Fort Stevens Military Reservation encompassed
all Tand on the south bank of the Columbia estuary within one and
a half miles of the northernmost part of Point Adams. Today, the
major portion of the original reserve is owned in fee by the State
of Oregon or is leased by the State from the U. S. Army Corps of
Engineers. The remainder falls within the Town limits of Hammond
and is under a variety of public and private ownerships.

Property nominated to the National Register encompasses
ca. 542 acres within secs. 5, 6, 7 and 8, T. 8 N., R. 10 W., of the
Willamette Meridian, in Clatsop County, Oregon. The recommended
boundary is described as follows:

Beginning at Point Adams on the south bank of the Columbia
River in section 6, T. 8 N., R. 10 W., WM, thence southwesterly
along the Fort Stevens Military Reservation boundary to the south-
west corner of the reservation, thence southeasterly along the
southerly reservation boundary to the Swash Lake outlet, thence
southwesterly to a point on the south line of section 6 approximately
900 feet west of quarter corner 6/7, thence south 2640 feet to a
point which is 900 feet west of the center of section 7, thence
southeasterly parallel to the beach approximately 1000', thence
east approximately 450' to a point approximately 900 feet south of
the center of section 7, thence north to the north quarter corner
of section 7, thence east along the section 1ine to the northeast
corner of section 7, thence south along the section line approximately
1900' to the town limits 1line of Hammond, thence east along said
town Timits 1ine approximately 700', thence north to the section
line between 5 and 8, thence east along said section line to its
intersection with the northerly town limits line of Hammond, thence
northeasterly along said town limits line to the south shore of the
Columbia River, thence northwesterly along the river approximately
5750' to the point of beginning.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Fort Steyens has the longest history as an active military post
of any site within the present borders of Oregon. Named for General
Isaac Ingalls Stevens, first governor of Washington Territory, the fort
was established by the U, S. Army in 1863, during the War Between the
States, as part of a system of defense points at the mouth of the Columbia
River. It remained actiye until 1884, After a hjatus of 14 years, the
post was reactivated and used as a training base through the Second World
War. The post was briefly involved in action by the enemy on the night of
June 21, 1942, Shells fired from a Japanese submarine landed in the
vicinity of Battery David Russell, Fort Stevens is believed to be the
only military base in the continental Unjted States to have been fired
upon by enemy during the Second World War.

The first fortification consisted of an earthwork with gun em~
placements, The first permanent buildings were erected near the river,
inthe area known as Lower Fort, in 1865, None of the early structures
remains today, The largest gun in the earthwork was fired for the first
time 7n 1869. It was a 15~inch Rodman which fired a 315-pound shell with
a 50~pound charge of mammoth powder, It had a range of 3,840 yards.

Battery David Russell, one of the later concrete emplacements, was
completed in August, 1904. It was armed with two 10~inch rifles on dis-
appearing mounts., Typically, the guns fired a 617-pound projectile
16,290 yards with a powder charge of 182 pounds. At the time of its
deactivation on December 29, 1944, Battery Russell was believed to have
been the Tast installation of its type active in the continental Tlimits
of the Unjted States, The battery was named in honor of Brevet Major
General Dayid A, Russell, 8th U. S, Infantry, who had been killed in action
at Opequon, Virginia, in 1864, during the War Between the States.

President of the United States Rutherford B. Hayes inspected the
garrison at Fort Stevens jn 1880, Between 1884 and 1898 the post was
transferred to the U, S, Army Engineer Department, and it was during this
period that construction of the Columbia River south jetty, one of the
most extensive river and harbor improvement projects ever undertaken in
Oregon, was started,

Return of the Artillery marked the beginning of major post en-
largement, including construction of the concrete fortifications, In Apri]
1898, the first four emplacements of newly constructed West Battery, armed
with 10~inch rifles on disappearing carriages, were turned over to the
artillery unit, These emplacements were later named Battery Lewis and
Battery Walker. Two other emplacements were built on the west end of West

(Continued)
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Oregon State Highway Division June 1971
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

National (X] State (] Local [7]

/ Name d 0(:'

State Highway Engineer

Title

pate dJune 30, 1971

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.
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Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Pfeservation
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8. Significance (Continued)

Battery. They were activated in June, 1900 _and later named
Battery Mishler. 1In 1899 Battery Lewis Clark was complete with
12=inch mortars. Two new batteries were built in June, 1900.
These were Battery Pratt, with 6-inch rifles on d1sappear1ng
carriages, and'Battery Elias Smur, with two 15-pounder rapid-fire
guns on balanced pillar mounts. Battery Constant Freeman was con-
structed late in 1900 on the site of the old earthwork. It was
equipped with two 6-inch rapid-fire guns on pedestal mounts and
one 15-pounder rapid-fire gun.

It was around 1900 and shortly thereafter that the buildings
and the drill grounds of the Upper Fort area were laid out. Several
large residences, the brick guardhouse, barracks and other structures
remain today under mixed ownership.




o // DA R
S\ Y V& \
, M //i

SEATTLE

ar

: o ™ m:z.OJOI Q3 LV 3Y QNw
i.a.qa u.rﬁ..w z_rtz .uoz&o_u,z.:m AdYVWIYd 40 VIYVY B
IV ALY INOWWYH NIHLUN  F2WY5/IINDIS AHVaN027S 40V 7l RN
'WIT ALID aNOWwW YN z%h\s FOMY DL INDIS, AV 18t 40 VIV 24 r
SLINIT AL1D q\,\qty\_iix..
YILSIDIH TYNOILYN FHL OL T

/

>§§< \r&mmokm/kb \Eéé 0F ==

SWwepy julo N




